DECATUR

FEDERAL

N—E August 5, 1986.

Mrs. Dorothy Nix, Director
DeKalb Historical Society

0ld Court House on the Square
Decatur, Georgia 30030"

Dear Mrs. Nix:

Enclosed is a copy of the original manuscript
of an address made by Roy Grizzel to the DeKalb Historical
Society and also a typewritten copy of same.

I have noted one or two minor errors as follows:

(a) 1In the first paragraph, the location between
Decatur and Marthasville. I do not believe Marthasville was
established as a community until much later. z g

: (b) Paragraph two refers to the location of the
medicine house being on Clairmont Road, but it has since been
moved to the Stone Mountain Park and is now located there.

With all good wishes, I am

Sincerely yours,

~

)uJ&Ao‘
us A. McCurdy
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HOUSTON CHAPEL

Typed from the original manuscript of an address made before the DeKalb
Historical Society by Roy Ames Charles Grizzel



HOUSTON CHAPEL

Many years ago, a sturdy pioneer, traveling on the Shallowford
Indian Trail, halted his wanderings in the pine-clad hills of northern
Georgia and established his home and also built a meeting house to the
glory of God in His wildernmess. This man was Naaman Hardman and his
meeting house was located between two small hamlets that prospered.
These were Decatur and Marthasville. This place of worship was called
Hardman: Primitive Baptist Church and was located just north of the
Seaboard Railway and about one-half mile west of the Shallowford Road
on Clairmont Road, as it is now called today.

The years rolled along and the people from all over the countryside
worshiped in the house of God built by Naaman Hardman. He had a sister,
Elizabeth, who married Dr. Chapman Powell who built a modest home of
logs near the meeting house on the Shallowford Indian Trail. To
Dr. Powell's house came the settlers and the Cherokee Indians also to
be made well by the white, medicine man. This house was soon known as
the medicine house and is still standing beside the home of Lanier
Billips just north of the city limits of Decatur on Clairmont Avenue.

On October 19, 1832, a daughter was born to the Powells. She
was given the name of Amanda Catherine. On July 25, 1854, Amanda
Catherine Powell married Washington Jackson Houston. They settled
down in the cabin of Dr. Powell, near the meeting house built by Naaman
Hardman.

The years rolled along and then war came to this peaceful community

when brother raised his hand in anger against his brother. Federal

troops all too soon came down the Shallowford Road and some of those



troops were quartered in the Hardman meeting house and the Houston
home became one of General Sherman's Field Hospitals.

After the war was over the people started to repair the damage
caused by the Federal troops. The Hardman meeting house was destroyed
and all that remains to this day is the cemetery on a wooded rise of
ground in the midst of Emory Apartment Project. This cemetery is used
today by children of the project as a playground. The graves are
trampied and desecrated. Tombstones and iron fences around some of the
lots are being broken down and used in making fireplaces. This cemetery
marks the final resting place of the Hardmans, the Powells and many of

their friends and neighbors.

During the war most of the families moved to other parts of the
county and state to get away from the federal troops and after the war they
never returned to their old homes or locations. New families moved in,
the community has grown, the wilderness has been overcome and hundreds of
families now live where only one lived before.

In this community, Amanda Powell Houston lived and set a beautiful

Christian example before all who knew her. She soon saw the need of a

place of worship that they could call their own and that would bring to

the community or neighborhood a place where a Sunday school could be
established.

In the early years of 1900, Mrs. W. J. Houston, at her own expense
caused to be erected a chapel not far from the site, where almost a hundred
years before, her uncle, Naaman Hardman: had established his meeting house
under the stately pines beside the Shallowford Indian Trail. On November
12, 1905, this chapel was dedicated to the glory of God and for use in
the community. Major Houston, who was an elder in the Decatur Presbyterian
Church, became its first Sunday School superintendent. This chapel was a

modest frame building painted white and stood on the west side of what is
now known as the S.A.L. Railway Beltline and on the south side of North
Decatur Road. Thus the Houston Chapel carried on the great Christian spirit
of the Hardman Meeting House. It was non-denominational and open to all
evangelical churches at any time. Reverend Dr. J. G. Patton, minister of
the Decatur Presbyterian Church was the master of ceremonies. Talks

were made by Reverend J. E. Sammons, Decatur



Baptist Church, Reverend C. H. Branch, Decatur Methodist Church,
Colonel Milton Candler and Major W. J. Houston. The pastors spoke
words of appreciation for the donors' work and of the Christian
unity that prevailed in the county and especially in this section.
The chapel had a seating capacity of 60 people, was fitted with cane
bottomed chairs, an organ, and was wired for electric lights. The
first gift consisted of song books.

During World War I the Patriotic League of Houston Chapel
adopted a French war orphan, Georgette Dousset of Cussac. This
child wrote several letters expressing her appreciation. These
letters were written in 1918. Her father was killed at Verdun on
August 21, 1916.

There has been only one wedding in the Houston Chapel. The
invitation reads "Mr. and Mrs. George Washington Pinnell invite you
to be present at the marriage of their niece, Miss Mae Edwards, to

Mr. Clyde Jones on the evening of Wednesday the fourteenth of

August at half after eight o'clock. Houston Chapel, Decatur, Georgia."

With the coming of Emory University in 1919, many of the
families who lived in that section moved away and attendance at
the little chapel dwindled until it was finally decided to close it
up since Mrs. W. J. Houston had died on December 29, 1908 and
Major Houston died on February 21, 1910.

As the years passed the community began to build up with new
homes of those who wanted to live further from the city and at the
same time become a part of a cultured community.

After the Houston Chapel was closed, the land on which it was

located was placed in trust with the heirs of the Houston estate to

be deeded in fee simple to the first Presbyterian group that would
B



organize a church in the community. In the spring of 1940 the Home
Missions Committee of the Atlanta Presbytery, seeing the possibility of
developing church opportunities in the rapidly growing section,
canvassed the homes and compiled a list of potential prospects who would
be interested in seeing the field developed.
As a result and in accordance with what they believed she would
have wished, the heirs of Amanda Powell Houston conveyed the deed to
the site of Houston Chapel to what is now known as Emory Presbyterian
Church, with the understanding that the lot was to be sold and the
proceeds applied against a larger tract of land of five lots nearby
for the building of yet another church consecrated to carrying on the
great spiritual traditions of Hardman Meeting House and Houston Chapel.
The Decatur Presbyterian Church, the mother church of most thriving
churches in the Atlanta Presbytery, undertook the task of getting this
work underway. Dr. D. P. McGeachey, pastor of the Decatur Presbyterian
Church, and the session, selected Mr. Joe K. Muse to head a committee
with authority to lay the groundwork and under their able direction,
this work was gotten underway. Mr. and Mrs. John F. Elliott were
selected to work with the interested people of the community. It was
decided that the best -way to make a start would be to hold cottage
prayer meetings throughout the community in the homes of those interested.
The first prayer service was held at the home of Mr. and Mrs. John
M. Bowen on May 13, 1940. A representative group was present and the
prayer meetings continued to be held in the homes until May 27, 1942,
The first committee from the interested group to serve were
Messrs. A. C. Duhn, Albert C. Burke, D. M. Goldsmith and John M. Bowen.
On August 18, 1940, the first Sunday School, morning and evening

il



services and meeting of the Young Peoples Group were held, the Emory
Women's Club building having been secured for the stated meetings.

On September 22, 1940, the group decided to contract for the
purchase of a church lot on North Decatur Road, the papers to be
drawn in the name of Decatur Presbyterian Church and titles to be
passed on to the new church when the final payment was made. At a
business meeting of the group held on September 25,1940, the
tentative name was decided to be Emory Presbyterian Church. At the
same time, Mr. Ben L. Wheeler was selected to act as Sunday School
superintendent and the following were named to act as "Trustees':

J. E. Hudson, Albert C. Burke, A. C. Duhn, W. Cecil Bradley, Dewey
Scarboro, John M. Bowen with John F. Elliott as ex-officio member.
Mr. Bowen was selected chairman, Mr. Duhn, the treasurer, and

Mr. Hudson, the secretary. Mr. Edmund Jones was selected on

February 12, 1941, to become a member of the "Board" and at the same
time B. L. Wheeler, George K. Hood and J. Allen Wilson were selected.
At a meeting held on March 12, 1941, Mr. Robert E. Brake was selected
to become a member §f the "Board."

At a meeting of the Board of Trustees, held on February 19, 1941,
it was decided to ask Decatur Presbyterian Church to agree to the
organization of a congregation as soon as possible.

The final details in connection with the purchase of the five lots
was consumated on February 18, 1941. The details in connection with
this purchase were handled By Mr. Dewey Scarboro. The first unit of
the new church to be erected was the Chapel. The name selected for
this building was "Houston Chapel" in memory of major and Mrs. W. J.

Houston.



On March 1, 1941, a petition was prepared to be presented to
Atlanta Presbytery for organization. The following extract is from
the minutes of Atlanta Presbytery:

(a) At the spring meeting of the Atlanta Presbytery, there was
presented a petition from 88 persons in the Emory neighborhood asking
for the organization of a Presbyterian Church. A commission consisting
of Rev. D. P. McGeachey, D.D., Rev. John B. Dickson, Rev. Harry B.Wade,
Rev. Van M. Arnold, Rev. William M. Elliott, D.D., Rev. Franklin C.
Talmadge and Elders J. K. Muse, George Hoyt, 0. J. Parker, J. K. Ottley
and George Winship were appointed to take such action as the
situation would justify.

Accordingly, the commission met with the Emory group on Friday,
April 25th at 8:00 p.m. at the Emory Women's Club building where the
Emory group was accustomed to meet for worship. The Commission approved
the organization of a church and called those interested to meet for
organization on Saturday evening, April 26th. The Commission agreed
to meet with the group for three days and to attend to all matters
growing out of the organization. Rev. F. C. Talmadge presided at
these meetings.

The Emory Presbyterian Church was organized with the 88 persons
as charter members and the membership entered into a covenant to work
together as a Presbyterian church. Mr. John F. Elliott, a student at
Columbia Theological Seminary, was chosen Moderator of the Session
until a pastor shall have been installed. He served as first pastor
from August 25, 1940 through September 7, 1941. John M. Brown was

elected Clerk of the Session. The first regular pastor was

-6-—



Rev. Donald Bennett Bailey, installed on October 4, 1942. Sept. 8%

Thus the Emory Presbyterian Church of today is carrying on the

Christian work of the community that was started at Hardman's Meeting
House on November 19, 1825, then on through the Houston Chapel which

has become a permanent part of the church plant of the Emory Presbyterian

Church.

This is the original manuscript of an address made before the DeKalb
Historical Society by Roy Ames Charles Grizzel

*This church now stands on the north side of North Decatur Road
between Westminster on the east and Haygood Drive to the southwest.

The Druid Hills High School is next to the church on the west side.
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By _Parcy Planf

R In November 1325 Naaman (see b Kings, Chapter 5} Hardman
~buflt s crude meet.lng houge, Just west of:the presant 1ntersect.ion
-+ of Clajrmont- Avenue and North-Decawur Road,

' - 'This -was .Kiown-- aa “the - Hardmsn - Primitive . Baptlat Ghurcht
“7+ Liggding members of thechurchwere: Naaman Hardman's slster,
- Elizaheth. and her-hushasnd, Dr, Chiapran Powell, They lived near-

... by InMedicine:Houge -on the Shallowford:Indlan Trail (now Clair -

. mont Ave;) where the' dactor: provlded medlcnl care. for both the
. whités-and Indlans of the area,” -
", During the Civil: War the: church ‘was, used by the Federa.ls fo .

" the neglected cemerery Tiear-the Emory Apartments.
AR : .-

.~ worghip in.the.community, - - -
o Acco:-dingly. in 1905, she: had 8. modest frame buﬂdlng erected
“. . at-her .own expense not far from:the slte of the original meeting
"+ . house, It'was named Houston Chapel and was’ ‘non=denominational, "
- although'the Hougtona were: Presbytertans, The bullding seated 60

e . péople, -had: an organ. cane-bottomed chairs, and was. lighted by
-__j_electricity. _ AT

e

S INI‘EREST IN the chapel- dwindled In the Iollowlng yenrs a8
R origingl members passed away, Finally it was closed, In accor~ |
"V “dance:with what they believed. Amanda Chapran Houston would have |

ey 'wlshedy ‘the Houston. heirs agraed thak the propercty be deaded to

* the. flrst Presbyterlan group organizlng 8 church m the commu- )

nity. :
.In 1941 t.he property WS- sold and the. proceeds used 0 help wtth

. . the construction costs of the newEmcry PresbyterianChurch ona.

. _largsr lot not far ‘away, .-

» .. ~Thus- the Hérdmans, Powells, chstons and others ‘helped hulld
"+ the Emory Prebbyterian Chirch: to carry torward the Chrisr.lan
worship they startecl .ln 1825. R .

:'quarter troops. and was later destroyed. ‘All that remains today ls ﬁ-

R IN LA’I‘ER years. Amanda. daughter of Dr and Mrs. Pcwell and
wlfe of -Washington ‘Jackson Houston, saw the need of a place of




HOUSTON CHAPEL - THEN AND NOW

BY CLARK RINARD

SOCIAL SCIENCE PROJECT

1983



Houston Chapel~--Then and Now

I'. The 1nd1ana--5ha1i6urord Trail’
II, Naaman Hardmen . :

A, Hardman'Baﬁtist Ghﬁrch

- B, Hardman church'ceaétery"

C. Elizabeth Hardman, siater, marries Dr. chapmon
~ Powell.

I1I. The Powells
~ A, Dr, Chapmon Powell -
B. Amanda Powell, daughter;bma?riea w.J. Houston,
IV. The Houstons
| A, ﬁuring_thg Civil ¥War _
B, On trips out West'to the Indians

. Land holdings; local prominénce

V. Housaton Chapel
A, When it was active

B, When it was moved and used as a house
1. The Rev. Mr, Moore--current resident
2. The Rev. Mr., Hoore--his hisgtory

VI; Emcry Preabyterian Church



Few people who live and work in the erea or DeXalb
county, Georgisa neer the 1ntersection of Clairmont and north
Decatur roads realize that this neishborhood hag a rich and
long history. Evidence o:.Indian and-eaply white and black
civilization is nearly gone, written“documentatioﬁ;is.ffac--lH
tically non-existent,. and only a few old-timers who can .
remember back a generation cr two are atill with us. Thig_
report ig an attempt to discover and tell the atory or the
__early years of thin area berore it is rorgotten.- The rocus,“
will be on the 1little Houston Chapel, past and pz?esent.. |

Little_isrkppwnqabcut.the.Ihd;ana who lived in these .
woods. - - The Cherckee Indians were here when the |
first white settlers came. They made a_?rail) known as the
Shallowford Ihdian Trall to Roewell, which 18 now Clalirmoent
Road, | _ , |

Decatur and Marthasville (l1ater named Atlanta) were
‘juat little towns when a eettler named Hardmancame to this
" area and built a church called Hardman Meeting House or
__Hardman Primitive Baptist Chureh.’ It ias located on & knoll
Jjust north of the Seaboard Rallway, west of the Shallowford
trail (Clairment Rd. ) in what 1is today the University Apartment
Complex. The church wag destroyed in the civil War, dbut the
demetery gtill exists. .Buried_in that cemetery are aome of
DeKsalb cOunty g earliest white settlers. 1t has been neglected

and vandalized for many years, but finally is being restored as

a Boy Scout project of Troop # 55,
LI 0 mnrried Dr. Ghapmon



-le
Powell who lived in & log cabin Just a little south, along
the Shallowford Trail. To the Ihdians this cabin was known
8. "Medicine House" Beeauae Dr. Powell mixed herba there to treat

their i1llnesses,2 Hedlcine House was moved to Btone Mountain
Park to be a part of the Plantation in the pdrk., There.is & car
wash where it stood at 1218 Clairmont Road.

The waells daushter;Amanda Gatherine wes born in 1832,
In 1854 she married Haahinston Jackaon Houston, and they lived
-rirat 1n Atlanta, then later 1n the log cabin of Amanda's birth,
Hedicine House, near Decatur.;o ¥. J. Houston 11ved to be 79 yeara
old and had a very active and 1nf1uentia1 life, His main career
was with the railroada. During the Civil War he was put in
-charge of all transportaticn of aouthern soldiers, munl tiona and
-suppliea out of Atlanta. Hhile he was serving in the war, Amanda
and his children were protected at home by two slaves and an o0ld
white man., Then Bherman came and used their home as a fleld
hospital, while pﬁe tfeOpe cambed out back, W.J. Houston was
- ahle to sneak-baek.home onﬁeeveral occassionsg, but one time he
. was caught and was sentenced to hang as a 8py, but he was freed
when 1t wae learned that he was a Hnaon.%o

Arter the war ¥W.J. Houston, then called Major Houston,
wae appoigted to travel to the Yuma‘Ihdiana out Weat to negotiate
a treaty with thém that resulted in the land of lower California
and Arizona to be purchased from the Indians by the U. S. government,
Another official trip was to the Osage Inhdlans fo Oklahome. Auwanda,
his wlfeg went with him. Letters end documents of these tripa

are pfeeefved in DeKalb Historical Society and show an interesting

picture of the times.lo
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wWashington Jackson Houston owned hundreds of acres around his
home in DeXalb County, and three griat millp} Houston Kill .
Road 18 named after e of them, Houston Mill was a wonderful
swimming hole and plcnic area and drew residente from all around
in the summertime.,iO0 The first electric light plant in DeKalb
vas installed by W.J. Houston. It was located on Peachtree Creek,
near Emory Uni#ersity. The first lights in Decatur were turned
“‘on in 1966 10 y.7. Houston-was-one of the organizers of
Lgnes 8cott College," called then Decatur Female Seminary.

- Towerd the end of ‘his life (he died in 1911), Haahinstcn
“Tackson Houston, at the ‘request or his wife, Amanda, had.a
11tt1e chapel ‘built for this community. called Houston chapel.
bullt in 1905, He presided at as many services as his health

10 -pne chapel was & modest frame building painted

" would allow,
white, wired with electricity, bad a pump organ and seated
sixty people in cane-bottomed chairs.4 The eervices were non-
‘“denominational, though the Houstons were Presbyterlan, Mrs,
A.C. Burke, long-tize resident on Norih Decatur Road next to the
chapel remembers attending afternoon éunday School in the little
building.5 | | '

The.active 1ife of the chapel was relatively short, about
14 years, as far as can Dbe figured., During that time there was
one wedding held in the chapel? During World War I the chapel
rormed 4he Pdatriotic League of Houston Chapel and adopted‘
French war,orphan, a little girl, who vrote the Leasue geveral
letters. 9

By 1919, when Emory. University came to this area,

em W™ % L o s ditnm Nmrroat Ao -J- nnd Am&nda hﬁ-d
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died, and interested families had moved a#ay. It wae declded
to close 1t up. The land on which fouston Chapel was located
*"waa placed in trust with the heirs of the Houhtcanatate to be
deeded in fee simple to the first Presbyterian group that
wauld organize a church in ‘the . community.‘9 |

It was not until 1928 that the Houstcn Chapel wae |
moved to its present location, several hundreda of yards south,
along the Seaboard Railline. © There is no public road to 1t;
just & rough dirt road leading from North Decatur Road., The
present reaidént; the Rev, Mr. Ernest Moore, has 1ived in it
gince 1928, Hr Hoore came to this area in 1915, when he ran
away from home 0 avoid farming. (He grew up in a rural aresa
enst of Atlanta.) He is black, asnd in those days, blacks were
hired to help.the whites., He wgrked a8 a yardman, and & stove
man, tending the wood stoves. Hé marrieé the cook at the.
candler Place (now EmoTry University), Ava, BY the twenties
Lanier 8illups, an.helr to the Houston Estate,lived in a big house
et 1218 clairmont Road, and Mr. Moore faithfully tended to him '
" 4n his last 111nesa. Becaupse of this aervice,Houaton Chapel, in
" 4te new 1ocation wes given to Ernest Hoore to live in a8 long as
~ he 1ives;7

Mr, Hoore is now 87 years old, Fourteen of his elghteen
children were raised in the old Houston Chapel. He seent them
to Decatur Fo school, and paid tuition for tbem te attend., He
rémeﬁbera back Qhen he first arrivea in this area. There was
a atation. a flag stop, where he got orf the train, Just a few
yards from hisP;;g;:rdoor. He remembers old namee and places,

and can descridbe in detail the gardens of the bilg houses that

o - 2w . ‘A_‘.‘nl"“ﬂ‘ - - o ﬂh1ﬁ ﬂhmentﬂ. a car



B
wash, a liquor store, a rlllins station along Clairmont Road. He
tells, with pride, that he has, in the flower beds around hia old
house, more varieties of flowers than anyone in DeKalb County.
The Rev. Mr. Moore is an ordained Baptlst minisigr and paﬁtors a
little church outatde-ciarksvillé, Georgla. He-has-no éar, io he
makes the trip by bus. | : R

One winter day he invited a néléhbbr in to talk about old
timea.6 A fireplace now covers the old chapel entrance, and pic-

turee of his father and mother, (both lived to be over 100 years old),

“as well as children, grandchildren. and great-grandchildren

decbrate the walls, On the outside, a back stoop hae been added, and

in front, an enclosed porch The wood etove uses the original

: flue, There are out-buildinsa on-his lot, and renced pens for some

chickens,. The sound of roosters crowins 1s not unusual 1n this
neighdborhood. In his old bibbed overalls and high-top leather
shoes, the tall, lean Mr, Moore 18 a figure from yesterday carry-
ing his sack of potatoes home from the corner Thrifttown grocery
gstore, He has seen some Qpamatic chanéed in hie neighborhood dur-
ing his 70 years here, | | |

‘The lot on which Housten Chapel originally was sold and

the proceeds were eventually used to help start Emory FPresbyterian

' church; which was built not far from the original -site of Houstoa

Chapel. By the early nineteen forties new subdivisions were built
in this vicinity with street némea such as Princeton Way and
Westminster Way. ({The backyard of 428 Princeton Way borders Mr.
Moore'k property.) Families with young children moved into

the houses, and the Atlanta.?resbytery decided



o -6-
the time was ripe to form a Presbyterian Church for the
new community. The Decatur Presgbyterian Church undertook
the task of organizing the new church.? In September, 1940
the five lots where the church now standa were purchased.
for the constructien of a largerchurch. of which only the
chapel was-built. I+ was to be ﬁamed “Houston Ghapel‘9 but
18 not known by that name today, as ihe chapel consatitutes
the entire church, “"Bo, Emory Presbytefign Church carries
on the tradition of the early settlers of this aéction, the
Kardmane, the Powells, and the Houstene in providing a

“peeting house™ for the residents of the land they settled as

poineera."3
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ONCE upon a time, a sturdy pioneer soul, traveling south on the Shallowford Tndian
Trail, halted his wanderings among the pine-clad -hills of northern Georgia, and built
a meeting house to the glory of God in His Wilderness. The man’s name was Naaman
Hardman, and his meeting house was located between two little hamlets that grew

and prospered. One being called Decatur; and the other Marthasville; later, Atlanta.

The vears rolled round and the people of the surrounding countryside worshipped
3 peop 2 y PP

Amanda Powell Houston God in the house Naaman Hardman had built for them.
And Hardman had a sister, Elizabeth, who married Dr. Chapman Powell. And they, too, built a modest log cabin, nearby
the meeting house on the Shallowford Indian Trail. To Dr. Powell’s house came the Cherokee Indians and the settlers to be

made well by the “White Medicine Man.”

On October 19, 1832, a daughter was hom to the Powells. And
she was named Amanda Catherine.

On Julv 25, 1854, Amanda Catherine Powell married Wash-

ington Jackson Houston. And they settled down in the cabin of Dr.

Powell, near the meeting house that had been built by Naaman
Hardman.

The years rolled round. War came, and brother raised his hand
in anger against brother. Federal troops were quartered in the meet-

ing house: and the Houston home was one of General Sherman’s

field hospitals.

e |

y




Decatur Presbyterian Church

THE community chosen by Emory Presbyterian Church is not without its already
established churches. _

Counted as one of the South’s finest, and located within a half mile of the build-
ine site is the famous Glenn Memorial Methodist Church. g

" The comiunity is not without its already established Presbvterian churches; but

these are mot nearly so close by. Druid Hills Presbyterian lies almost three miles
away. Decatur Preshyterian is only a bit nearer.

The Southern Presbvterian Church’s Columbia Seminary is some four miles
distant.

Yes, the community already boasts several fine, well-supported churches of large
congregations; but it needs another, a little closer to its homes, adequate for its

future growth.
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Original Log Cabin

Major W. J. Houston

simple graves po 124

o

6f the Hardmans. lhe Powells, their friends

and neighbors. But ihe conumunity had grown:

the wilderness was overcome. A hundred
people lived where only a solitary [amily had

once set its face against the primeval forest.

Present Home

And with the community had grown up Amanda Powell Houston;

families a heautiful Christian SETVICE

ticularly their own in which to worship God.

and quick to sens¢ their needs

At her own expense she caused to be erected a chapel within a sty

same site where, almost a hundred vears before, her Uncle Naaman Hj

meeting house amidst the stately pines of the Shallowford Tndian Trail.

1903, this chapel was dedicated to the

Sunday School Superintendent.

And so for another quarter cenfury Houston Chapel carried on
Spirit of Hardman Meeting houses until today, i accordance with wl
would have «ished, the heirs of Amanda Powell Houston convey the sit
to the Emory Presbyterian Church,.'With the understanding that the I

the proceeds applied against the building of yet another church, conseq

the great spiritual tradition of Hardman

commumnity, and Major Houst

Meeting House and Houston




Houston Chapel--Then and Now

I. The Indiane--Ehallowford Trail
11, _zmmsmb Hardman .

" A, Hardman Baptist Church

B, Hardman Church Cemetery

G. meumdmww Hardman, eister, merries Dr, Chapmon
Powell. .

HHH. The Powells

A, Dr. Chapmon Powell

B. Amands Powell, daughter, marries wW.J. Housten.
v. esm.mommﬂowm.

A, During the Civil ¥er |

B, on tripe out West to the Indians

‘ €. Leand SOanbmm“ Hoan prominence

V. Houteton Chapel
A, When 1t was active
B. ¥hen 1% weEe moved and used as & house
1. The Rev., Mr. KMoore--current resident
2. The mm<. Mr. Moore--his history
vI. Emory Presbyterian Church o



Emory Presbyterian Church Page 1 of 2

Home
Covenant WELCOME
Worship
Prayer Emory Presbyterian Church, PC
Fellowship (USA), founded in 1941, is
Service located in Atlanta, Georgia,
near the Emory University
Children campus. In a busy city full of
transplanted people, Emory
Youth :
Presbyterian offers warm
Adults community life. Our worship
Music service is traditional but

. informal. Wherever you are in
Parents’ Night Out your spiritual journey, we
Staff welcome you to travel with us.

N E T Visit next Sunday. Worship is at 11:00 am (childcare provided),

Calendar preceded by Sunday School for all ages at 9:45.
Sermons . _

| We host Taize worship the first Monday of every month at 8:00 pm and
Newsletters Parent's Night Out for the community one Saturday per month. The
Directions outdoor labyrinth is always open for walking prayer.
Contact Us

The church is on North Decatur Road between Clairmont and the Emory
University campus, on your right as you come from Clairmont. It is on a
magnolia-bordered lot between Westminster Way and Haygood, next to
Druid Hills High School. The parking lot is off Westminster Way. For
directions from local highways, see the directions page.
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Church Directory Page 1 of 2

Church Directory

Website:

Emory Presbyterian Church  Voice: 404-325-4551 i . i
www.emorypresbyterian.org

Mailing Address: 1886 North
Decatur Road

Atlanta, GA
30307-1100

Staff - Volunteer Positions:

Landreth, Charles - Pastor

Howard, Stewart - Clerk of Session

Phelan, Adam - Christian Educator/Youth Director
Choate, Bill - Treasurer

Eskew, Elise - Director of Music

Osborne, Glenda - Office Administrator

About our Directory
To better serve our members, keep our directory up-to-date more often and keep costs down, we provide
a searchable directory on-line. Our directory is to be used for official business within the Presbytery and
not to be sold for profit.

Submitting Changes

Email: ghairston@presbyteryofgreateratl.org

Online Form: http://www.presbyteryofgreateratl.org

Mail: Attn: Gwen Hairston, 1024 Ponce de Leon Ave, Atlanta, GA 30306-4216
Fax: 404-898-0679.

Changes can be submitted at any time.

Our Policy on the use of The Presbytery Directory

We ask that the information contained herein be used exclusively for the dissemination of information
promoting the programs and services of the institutions and agencies of The Presbyterian Church (USA).
We ask that you observe the following limitations for the use of this directory:

It will not be shared with any other agency, institution, or individual at any time.

It will not be used as any form of exchange to obtain other mailing lists.

It will be used exclusively for the dissemination of information regarding the programs and services
offered by the institutions and agencies of the Presbyterian Church (USA).

There will be no solicitation for funds from the churches, pastors, or other individuals whose names are
listed in this Directory.
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T his booklet defines an opportunity—an opportunity to share
in the building of a house of worship to serve a large and grow-
ing community. It is presented for the information of Christian
men and women who have the means and the will and the spirit

to help in this needed work.




Hmm site chosen for Emory Presbyterian Church lies in the

heart of a residential, educational and religious community

of some ten thousand population.

The location is such that the path of growth of both Atlanta

and Decatur sweeps across it.

oF
MORY PrtspyTERiaAN CHURCH

The lot itself has frontage of 535 feet along three splen-

did residential streets.

No spot throughout the entire Southland could offer finer

opportunities for cultural and spiritual development.




LN AN S LS LR




Mo S rodidontial Q\\m\%@

Y W,

W -

Ponce de Leon Avenue, Druid Hills

North Decatur Road, Emory Grove

Subdivision




Princeton Way, Emory Grove

Subdivision

ee

UEE Hills” - - - famed throughout the nation as
one of the South’s &mﬁﬁm&mr@& residential sections
lies adjacent to the site of the ?.ow%& church.

On its other flanks new, modern homes have been
recently built by the hundreds, with many a lot yet

remaining to _.B..oﬂ..m@ for the discriminating home-
owners of the future.
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H%?o& scenes taken around

the campuses of Emory and
Agnes Scott Colleges.




HZOW% University and Agnes Scott College—names of

national reputation in educational circles.

Emory with assets of $14,000,000, and Agnes Scott, one
of the South’s few accredited colleges for women, attract
almost 5,000 students.

The Druid Hills grammar and high schools magnificently
provide desirable preparatory education for the sons and
daughters of the Emory Presbyterian Church section.
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H‘mm community chosen by Emory Presbyterian Church is not without its already
established churches.

Counted as one of the South’s finest, and located within a half mile of the build-
ing site is the famous Glenn Memorial Methodist Church.

The community is not without its already established Presbyterian churches; but
these are not nearly so close by. Druid Hills Presbyterian lies almost three miles
away. Decatur Presbyterian is only a bit nearer.

The Southern Presbyterian Church’s Columbia Seminary is some four miles
distant. .

Yes, the community already boasts several fine, well-supported churches of large
congregations; but it needs another, a little closer to its homes, adequate for its
future growth.

Decatur Presbyterian Church
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OZOM upon a time, a sturdy pioneer soul, traveling south on the Shallowford Indian
Trail, halted his wanderings among the pine-clad hills of northern Georgia, and built
. a meeting house to the glory of God in His Wilderness. The man’s name was Naaman
Hardman, and his meeting house was located between two little hamlets that grew

and prospered. One being called Decatur; and the other Marthasville; later, Atlanta.

The years rolled ’round and the people of the surrounding countryside worshipped

Amanda Powell Houston God in the house Naaman Hardman had built for them.
And Hardman had a sister, Elizabeth, who married Dr. Chapman Powell. And they, too, built a modest log cabin, nearby

the meeting house on the Shallowford Indian Trail. To Dr. Powell’s house came the Cherokee Indians and the settlers to be

made well by the “White Medicine Man.”

On October 19, 1832, a daughter was born to the Powells. And
she was named Amanda Catherine.

On July 25, 1854, Amanda Catherine Powell married Wash-
ington Jackson Houston. And they settled down in the cabin of Dr.

Powell, near the meeting house that had been built by Naaman

Hardman.
The years rolled ’round. War came, and brother raised his hand
In anger against brother. Federal troops were quartered in the meet-

ing house; and the Houston home was one of General Sherman’s
field hospitals.

X S
e

Home of Dr. Chapman Powell
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Major W. J. Houston

Original Chapel

Then came 1905, and the meeting house
was gone—its location marked only by a few
simple graves pointing the final resting place
of the Hardmans, the Powells, their friends

and neighbors. But the community had grown;

the wilderness was overcome. A hundred

Present Home of Church Worship

people lived where only a solitary family had

once set its face against the primeval forest. ¢
And with the community had grown up -Amanda Powell Houston; heaping upon its

families a beautiful Christian service; and quick to sense their needs for a place par-

ticularly their own in which to worship God.

At her own expense she caused to be erected a chapel within a stone’s throw of that
same site where, almost a hundred years before, her Uncle Naaman Hardman had set his
meeting house amidst the stately pines of the Shallowford Indian Trail. On November 12,

1905, this chapel was dedicated to the community, and Major Houston became its first
Sunday School Superintendent.

And so for another quarter century Houston Chapel carried on the great Christian
Spirit of Hardman Meeting house; until today, in accordance with what they believe she
would have wished, the heirs of Amanda Powell Houston convey the site of Houston Chapel
to the Emory Presbyterian Church, with the understanding that the lot is to be sold and
the proceeds applied against the building of yet another church, consecrated to carrying on

the great spiritual tradition of Hardman Meeting House and Houston Chapel.
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Architectural Drawing of Entrance to Chapel

\

AumOmmz for iis inherent loveliness
and as a style expressive of the deepest

religious fervor, the architecture of the

Church is to be Gothie, not the Gothic of

the pedant and antiquarian content to copy verbatim the great and beautiful struc-
tures of the middle ages, but rather the living Gothic developed by the genius of
a group of English and American Architects who working through the old forms
have translated them into architecture as modern as the latest streamliner and yet
have preserved the dynamic intensity of feeling that characterized the Gothic of the

Maedieval period.

Architectural Drawing of Chapel and Sunday School Building
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BY DR. J. B. GREEN

Hmm purpose and function of the church is to

provide man with a place where he can worship

God. The church is an institution for the practice of religion.

But a house of worship could not discharge its obligation to its mem-
bers unless it also served the community in many collateral ways. Let us

consider, for a moment, the broad service of the church in the community.
The church is a citizen.

As a citizen, the church inculcates by precept and example respect for
law and obedience to authority. The church is the advocate of freedom
and democracy. It inspires men to respect themselves and to respect their
fellow man . . . and respect for one’s fellow man means respect for his
person, his property and his rights. The democratic way of life is implicit

in religion.
The church contributes to the social welfare of the community.

As the center of a society organized on the principles of love and
brotherhood, the church has long been and will continue to be the enemy

of false distinctions between men. It brings relief to the suffering, de-

liverance to the downtrodden, uplift to the degraded. It teaches the strong
that service is a duty. It encourages the weak to avoid the shame of de-

pendence. The church sets the ultimate example of service to the community.
The church is a teacher.

Through the centuries, the church has been the mother of popular

‘education. The church bears a double torch . . . bringing man the light

of knowledge of this world, and the light of knowledge of the world here-

after. Where the church has not gone, ignorance prevails.
The church is religion.

The church is an institution where man can worship God . . . where
man finds the gospel of hope and the promise of life everlasting. The
church serves man’s deepest need . . . and in doing so, serves the welfare

of the human race in every fundamental need.

If a man is interested in the welfare, the education, and the salvation
of his fellow man, let him rally, therefore, to the support of God’s church—

the one house which offers haven and hope in a troubled world.

Ruralist Press, Inc., Atlanta.
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